URBANA CITY COUNCIL
PUBLIC HEARING
JANUARY 19, 2021, AT 6:00 P.M.

(The UCC Regular Session Meeting will be held in Training Room in the Municipal Building)

Please join my meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone.
https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/164403461

You can also dial in using your phone.
United States: +1 (646) 749-3122

Access Code: 164-403-461

PLEASE MUTE YOUR PHONES

A Public Hearing to discuss the request to vacate all of Beech Street adjoining the south lines of Lots 18,
19, 20, 21, 22, & 23 of Mosgrove, Wiley, Winslow, & Young Addition as recorded in Plat Slide 92,
Cabinet 1, of the Champaign County Plat Records; and to vacate all of that part of Beech Street adjoining
the south line of Lots 6, 7, & * of William Wiley’s Addition as recorded in Plat Slide 60, Cabinet 1, of the
Champaign County Plat Records; and to vacate the 12’ wide alley between Lots 21 and 22 of Mosgrove,
Wiley, Winslow & Young Addition as recorded in Plat Slide 92, Cabinet 1, of the Champa9ign County
Plat Records.

URBANA CITY COUNCIL
REGULAR SESSION MEETING
JANUARY 19, 2021, directly following Public Hearing

(The UCC Regular Session Meeting will be held in Training Room in the Municipal Building)

Call to Order

Roll Call

Pledge of Allegiance
Approval of Minutes

Urbana City Council Regular Session Meeting Minutes of January 5, 2021.

Page 1 of 3



Communications

Board of Control

**%%*Pyurchase Orders $2,501.00 - $50,000.00 for November and December, 2020%*****
Citizen Comments

Ordinances and Resolutions

First Reading

Resolution No. 2598-21

A Resolution authorizing the Chief Executive Ofﬁcer and the Chief Fiscal Officer to apply for,
accept, and enter into a cooperative agreement for the construction, maintenance, and operation
of the Phase 2A Sanitary Sewer Replacement Project (Supplemental Loan) between the City of
Urbana and the Ohio Water Development Authority, and declaring an emergency. (May be
passed on 1% reading)

Resolution No. 2599-21

A Resolution to authorize the Ohio Department of Transportation to proceed with the pavement
planing and resurfacing with asphalt concrete, including pavement markings, of the existing
United States Route 36 within the City of Urbana between Locust Street and Berwick Drive and
State Route 29 between United States Route 36 and Bon Air Drive; to authorize the Fiscal
Officer (Director of Finance to appropriate and issue payment to the State of Ohio in the amount
of $123,984.00 toward said project; to authorize the Director of Administration to sign any
contracts or other documents related to said project; and declaring an emergency. (May be
passed on 1% reading)

Resolution No. 2600-21

A Resolution to dedicate the Public Sanitary Sewer Main that was installed by project
Developer, Urbana Hotel, LLC, as the part of the construction of the new Cobblestone Hotel and
Suites (Parcel #K48-25-00-01-20-047-03; 170 State Route 55), and declarmg an emergency.
(May be passed on 1% reading)

Second Reading

Third Reading

Ordinance No. 4533-20

An Ordinance to vacate all of Beech Street adjoining the south lines of Lots 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, &
23 of Mosgrove, Wiley, Winslow, & Young Addition as recorded in Plat Slide 92, Cabinet 1, of

Page 2 of 3



the Champaign County Plat Records; and to vacate all of that part of Beech Street adjoining the
south line of Lots 6, 7, & 8 of William Wiley’s Addition as recorded in Plat Slide 60, Cabinet 1,
of the Champaign County Plat Records; and to vacate the 12’ wide alley between Lots 21 and 22
of Mosgrove, Wiley, Winslow & Young Addition as recorded in Plat Slide 92, Cabinet 1, of the
Champaign County Plat Records.

Miscellaneous Business

Adjourn

Page 3 of 3



URBANA CITY COUNCIL
REGULAR SESSION MEETING
TUESDAY, JANUARY 5, 2021

President Hess called the City of Urbana Regular Session Meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. City
staff attending: Mayor Bill Bean, Director of Administration Kerry Brugger, Director of Finance
Chris Boettcher, Director of Law Mark Feinstein, Superintendent of Public Works Chad Hall and

Community Development Manager Doug Crabill.

PRESIDENT CALLED ROLL: Mr. Fields, present; Mr. Hoffman, absent; Mr. Paul, present;
Mr. Scott, present; Mr. Thackery, absent; Mrs. Collier, present; and Mr. Ebert, present.

ANNUAL ORGANIZATIONAL ITEMS

1. Council President Pro Tem Appointment — Mr. Fields moved to appoint Councilman
Dwight Paul for President Pro Tem, Mr. Scott seconded. Voice vote on approval: 5
ayes, 1 abstain from Mr. Paul. |
Motion passed S-1 (abstain)

2. Council Clerk Appointment — Mr. Thackery moved to appoint Amy Deere as Council
Clerk. Mr. Paul Seconded. It was decided to leave the salary figure as it is presently,
and would be discussed further at future Work Session. Voice vote on approval: all
ayes, nays, none.

Motion passed 6-0

3. Committees — This was decided to discuss the committees at the future Work Session
on January 26, 2021.

MINUTES

Mr. Fields moved to put the minutes of December 15, 2020, on the floor for discussion and
possible passage. Mr. Thackery seconded. Voice vote on approval: all ayes; nays, none.

Motion passed 6-0.
COMMUNICATIONS

1. “Pardon Our Mess” handout from Columbia Gas. Mr. Brugger stated that Columbia
Gas has begun mapping and looking underground prior to construction.

1



2. Mr. Brugger spoke about an email regarding Phase 1B of Covid-19 Vaccinations to
include elected officials. He handed out a form to all of Council and stated if anyone
wished to receive a vaccine, fill the form out and get it to the Health Department or
the Council Clerk by Thursday, 1/4/21.

Mr. Thackery moved to put the remaining communication on the floor for further discussion and
possible passage. Mrs. Collier seconded. Voice vote on approval: all ayes; nays, none.

Motion passed 6-0.

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS - BOARD OF CONTROL

1.

Blanket Purchase Orders
Mrs. Boettcher stated that all the purchase order amounts are in the 2021 budget.

Mr. Scott asked about the IT purchase order and mentioned that he could not get on
His email. Mr. Brugger stated that they did not know but would look into it.

Mr. Ebert asked if the City gets its return on fuel. Mrs. Boettcher stated this was the
amount they do every year, and Mr. Brugger stated that the City would get the return and
then some.

Mr. Scott moved to put the purchase orders on the floor for passage. Mr. Fields seconded.
Voice vote on approval: all ayes; nays, none.

Motion passed 6-0.

CITIZEN COMMENTS

1. Stephanie Truelove — 707 N. Oakland St. — spoke about her step son and the filing of

taxes. She stated that he made $557.90 for last year, and she did not have to file federal
or state income tax and she assumed that she wouldn’t have to file City tax for him either.
She stated that they received notice that those funds were earned money and that he must
file City Income Tax. She also mentioned there is also a late fee incurred of $50.00. She
stated that she felt this was absolutely unfair and believes this is a subject worth looking
into.



ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS

First Reading

Resolution No. 2595-21

A Resolution to approve a water tap-in for Frank S. Kendrick aka Franklin S. Kendrick at 250
Dellinger Road (Parcel #130-09-12-19-00-005-00) as an Extra Territorial Customer, and
declaring an emergency. (Suspension of rules requested by utility services applicant)

Mr. Crabill stated the applicant requested a sanitary sewer tap-in only, but the City’s Ordinance
states both must be done. The applicant has submitted application for both.

Mr. Thackery moved to suspend the three-reading rule. Mr. Fields seconded. President Hess
called for a roll call for the suspension of the three-reading rule: Mr. Paul, yes; Mr. Scott, yes;
Mr. Thackery, yes; Mrs. Collier, yes; Mr. Ebert, yes; and Mr. Fields, yes.

Motion passed 6-0.

Mr. Thackery moved to put this Resolution on the floor for further discussion and possible
passage. Mr. Paul seconded.

President Hess called for a roll call for passage: Mr. Paul, yes; Mr. Scott, yes; Mr. Thackery,
yes; Mrs. Collier, yes; Mr. Ebert, yes; and Mr. Fields, yes.

Resolution passed 6-0.

Resolution No. 2596-21

A Resolution to approve a sanitary sewer tap-in for Frank S. Kendrick aka Franklin S. Kendrick
at 250 Dellinger Road (Parcel #130-09-12-19-00-005-00) as an Extra Territorial Customer, and
declaring an emergency. (Suspension of rules requested by utility services applicant)

Mr. Paul moved to suspend the three-reading rule. Mr. Thackery seconded. President Hess
called for a roll call for the suspension of the three-reading rule: Mr. Scott, yes; Mr. Thackery,
yes; Mrs. Collier, yes; Mr. Ebert, yes; Mr. Fields, yes; and Mr. Paul, yes.

Motion passed 6-0.

Mr. Paul moved to put this Resolution on the floor for further discussion and possible passage.
Mr. Thackery seconded.



President Hess called for a roll call for passage: Mr. Thackery, yes; Mrs. Collier, yes; Mr. Ebert,
yes; Mr. Fields, yes; Mr. Paul, yes; and Mr. Scott, yes.

Resolution passed 6-0.

Resolution No. 2597-21

A Resolution enacted by the City of Urbana, Champaign County, Ohio, to authorize the Director
of Administration to make application to the Ohio Department of Transportation under the Ohio
Bridge Partnership Program and/or the Ohio Municipal Bridge Program for the replacement of
the West Court Street Bridge, and declaring an emergency. (May be passed on first reading)

Mr. Crabill advised that this bridge needed to be replaced. He stated that the City had made
application before, but were unsuccessful. ODOT advised that more surveys needed to be done,
etc. The application is due April 15, 2021, for the grant for construction and construction
inspections to be covered at 100%. The City should know if the grant was awarded by late June
or early July. If not funded through ODOT grant, the City would try through the Ohio Municipal
Bridge Program for funding. He also advised that it would cost approximately $350,000.00 -
$400,000.00 to replace the bridge.

Mr. Scott asked if Mr. Bumbalough would be the engineer on this project. Mr. Crabill stated that
it would depend on the design of the bridge.

Mr. Thackery moved to put this Resolution on the floor for further discussion and possible
passage. Mr. Paul seconded.

President Hess called for a roll call for passage: Mrs. Collier, yes; Mr. Ebert, yes; Mr. Fields,
yes; Mr. Paul, yes; Mr. Scott, yes; and Mr. Thackery, yes.

Resolution passed 6-0.

Second Reading -

Ordinance No. 4533-20

An Ordinance to vacate all of Beech Street Adjoining the south lines of Lots 18, 19, 20, 21, 22,
& 23 of Mosgrove, Wiley, Winslow & Young addition as recorded in Plat Slide 92, Cabinet 1, of
the Champaign County Plat Records; and to vacate all of the part of Beech Street adjoining the
south line of Lots 6, 7 & 8, of William Wiley’s Addition as recorded in Plat Slide 60, Cabinet 1,
of the Champaign County Plat Records; and to vacate the 12’ wide alley between Lots 21 and 22
of Mosgrove, Wiley, Winslow & Young Addition as recorded in Plat Slide 92, Cabinet 1, of the
Champaign County Plat Records. (Requires three readings and Public Hearing)

4



Mr. Fields asked if the letters have gone out. Mr. Crabill advised that was being worked on and
the Public Hearing would be held at the next Council Meeting.

President Hess declared this Ordinance to have its second reading.

Third Reading -

Ordinance No. 4532-20 .

An Ordinance to amend Sections 121.01, 111.03, and 111.04 of the Codified Ordinances as
required by the City of Urbana Charter, §4.06(k) (THE NEW SALARY COMMISSION)

Mr. Paul asked how to foresee this functioning, the thought of timelines, etc. Mayor Bean also
stated that he has only received one nomination and would appreciate Council’s help, for these
are Council’s Wards and would really appreciate any suggestions.

Mr. Thackery moved to put this Ordinance on the floor for further discussion and possible
passage. Mr. Fields seconded.

President Hess called for a roll call for passage: Mr. Ebert, yes; Mr. Fields, yes; Mr. Paul, yes;
Mr. Scott, yes; Mr. Thackery, yes; and Mrs. Collier, yes.

Ordinance passed 6-0.
MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS/WORK SESSION

Mr. Thackery spoke about Work Session topics. He said that he would like to discuss BR1
Zoning, and possibly do the organizational items that are on today’s agenda, if there was time.
He added that he would rather do one topic only and stay focuses and complete that one topic.
He added that once the committees are formed, he would like to start on the February Work
Session topics, and would like to see work being done by the committees and brought to Council.

Mr. Scott asked for a progress report on Crescent Ave., and were there any hiccups. Mr. Brugger
replied that there were none yet, finding underground discoveries, and will continue working on
the project.

Mayor Bead advised that the Health Department is taking names for the Covid-19 vaccine. Mrs.
Collier added that on line sign-ups were available.

Mr. Crabill stated that there will be exterior progress made on the Douglas and it is certainly a
positive note to see exterior work being done. Mr. Brugger added that it was nice to see lights in

5



the windows at night. He also mentioned the slate roof was being repaired or replaced. He also
advised that inspections on this project are being done with drones.

Mr. Brugger also advised that Christmas tree pick-up will continue throughout the month and
they need to be natural trees only, no artificial, no lights, etc., and the trees must be placed out at
the curb.

President Hess stated that there is now a Work Session scheduled for Tuesday, January 26, 2021,
at 6:00 p.m.

Mr. Fields moved to excuse Mr. Hoffman. Mr. Paul seconded. Voice vote on approval: all
ayes; nays, none.

Motion passed 6-0.
Mr. Fields moved to adjourn. Mr. Paul seconded. Voice vote on approval: all ayes; nays, none.

Motion passes 6-0.

ADJOURN AT 6:58 p.m.
NEXT SCHEDULED MEETING
January 19, 2021, at 6:00 p.m.
Council Clerk Council President



NOVEMBER 2020
PURCHASE ORDERS $2,501-$50,000

PURCHASE PURCHASE EXPLANATION : BOC APPROVAL
, VENDOR : ORDER  |DEPARTMENT :

ORDER # : _AMOUNT : DATE & VOTE:
27589 [VANCE'S LAW ENFORCEMENT | $ 8,396.55 |POLICE AMMO ORDER FOR REST OF 2020 AND FOR 2021 11.4.2020 (3)
27590 |CDW-G $ 10,253.98 [CARES ACT LENOVA THINKPAD E15, TRIPP LITE USB C DOCKING STATION  |11.4.2020 (3)

AIRPORT EQUIPMENT, MATERIAL, LABOR- CONVERT 15KW
27591 |JESS HOWARD ELECTRIC $ 3,500.00 REGULATOR TO MG STYLE WITH MANIRCO KIT 11.4.2020 (3)
FIRE PAGING HORNS, 8" SPEAKERS, VOL CONTROL, WIRE, SCANNER,
27592 |D&L SERVICES $ 9,401.20 LABOR 11.4.2020 (3)
27596 |ACORN FARMS $ 3,357.00 [COMMUNITY DEV. |19 TREES 11.11.2020 (3)
27612 |BRICKER & ECKLER LLP $ 10,171.25 [Law ROUNDABOUT LEGAL SERVICES 11.18.2020 (3)
27613 [STRYKER MEDICAL $  2,863.00 |FIRE PRIORTY ONE REIMBURSEMENT GRANT (SUPPLIES) 11.18.2020 (3)
27616 |EAST LAWN & GARDEN $ 3,099.00 [FIRE EQUIPMENT PURCHASE FOR NEW PUMPER TRUCK 11.24.2020 (3)
27618 |FIRE SAFETY SERVICES $ 5,188.96 [FIRE EQUIPMENT PURCHASE FOR NEW PUMPER TRUCK 11.24.2020 (3)
27619 |WARREN FIRE EQUIPMENT $  3,223.00 [FIRE EQUIPMENT PURCHASE FOR NEW PUMPER TRUCK 11.24.2020 (3)
VOGELPOHL FIRE EQUIPMENT FIRE EQUIPMENT PURCHASE FOR NEW PUMPER TRUCK &
27620 $ 41,548.23 STANDARDIZATION OF VEHICLES 11.24.2020 (3)
CARES ACT ZURN AQUA-GARD 3/8" THERMOSTACTIC MIXING VALVE FOR
27621 [RESTROOM DIRECT $  3,726.00 SENSOR FAUCETS 11.24.2020 (3)

Chris Boettcher
Secretary




DECEMBER 2020
PURCHASE ORDERS $2,501-$50,000

PURCHASE PURCHASE [EXPLANATION : BOC APPROVAL
VENDOR : ORDER
ORDER # : AVIOUNT : DEPARTMENT ; DATE & VOTE:
BODY ARMOR VEST FOR C.EDWARDS, T.WILLIAMS, & OTHER
27626 |A.E.DAVID CO $ 2,746.98 POLICE NEW HIRE 12.2.2020 (3)
27627 |A.E.DAVID CO $ 2,878.35 POLICE BODY ARMOR BULLET PROOF VEST ORDER 12.2.2020 (3)
CONCRETE FLOOR IN THE NEW POLICE DEPT BAY AT THE CITY
27638 |JEFF MARTIN CONSTRUCTION $ 23,200.00 POLICE PARK BLDG. 12.2.2020 (3)
27649 |RG TRUCKING S 4,000.00 WWTP SLUDGE TRUCKING TO FARM 12.9.2020 (3)
27658 |SPRINGFIELD TRUCK $ 6,500.00 FIRE REPAIRS TO ENGINE 1 12.18.2020 (3)
Chris Boettcher

Secretary




Resolution # 2598-21

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND THE CHIEF
FISCAL OFFICER TO APPLY FOR, ACCEPT, AND ENTER INTO A COOPERATIVE
AGREEMENT FOR THE CONSTRUCTION, MAINTENANCE, AND OPERATION OF THE
PHASE 2A SANITARY SEWER REPLACEMENT PROJECT (SUPPLEMENTAL LOAN)
BETWEEN THE CITY OF URBANA AND THE OHIO WATER DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY,
AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

WHEREAS, the City of Urbana, Ohio (hereinafter referred to as the “LGA") desires to
construct, maintain, and operate the Phase 2A Sanitary Sewer Replacement Project; and

WHEREAS, the City of Urbana, Ohio previously entered into a loan agreement/loan
accountwith the Ohio Water Development (OWDA Loan #8952) to provide funding forthe
sanitary sewer portion of the Phase 2A Water & Sanitary Sewer Replacement Project; and

WHEREAS, the cost splits that were used to obtain the water loan and sanitary sewer
loan for this project were inaccurate and caused the water loan to be overfunded and the
sanitary sewer loan to be underfunded; and

WHEREAS, the construction contract with the project contractor, M&T Excavating LLC,
remains within the original project budget approved by council in 2020 which included a 10%
contingency;

WHEREAS, the LGA desires to obtain a supplemental loan from the Ohio Water
Development Authority (hereinafter referred to as the “OWDA”) to continue to finance sanitary
sewer costs of the construction of such facilities on the terms set forth in the Cooperative
Agreement (defined below); and

WHEREAS, the OWDA has indicated its willingness to make a loan forthat purpose
and on those terms dependenton obtaining OWDA board approval in late January 2021;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Urbana, Ohio:

SECTION 1: Thatthe LGA hereby approves the construction, maintenance, and
operation of the aforesaid Phase 2A Sanitary Sewer Replacement Project in cooperation with
the OWDA underthe provisions, terms and conditions set forth in the “Cooperative Agreement
for the Construction, Maintenance, and Operation of State Wastewater Project” as set forth in
ExhibitA (the “Cooperative Agreement’) and hereby authorizes the Chief Executive Officer
and the Chief Fiscal Officer of the LGA to execute the Cooperative Agreement with the OWDA
for the supplemental loan to OWDA loan #8952 substantially in the form set forth in ExhibitA.

SECTION 2: Thatit is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council
conceming and relating to the passage of this resolution were passed in an open meeting of
this Council, and thatall deliberations of this Council and of any of its committees that resulted
in such formal action, were in meetings open to the public, in compliance with all legal
requirements including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.

SECTION 3: That this resolution is hereby declared to be an emergency measure
necessary for the immediate preservation of the public peace, health, and safety of said City of
Urbana, Ohio for the reason that the continued and timely construction of the Phase 2A
Sanitary Sewer Replacement at the earliest possible time is necessary in order fo protect the



health of the inhabitants of the LGA; wherefore, this ordinance shall be in full force and effect
from and immediately after its passage.

Passed: Council President

Aftest;

Council Clerk

This Resolution approved by me this day of , 2021,

Mayor

Department requesting: Community Development - Persaonnel: D. Crabill Director of Law review
Expenditure? Y (N) I Emergency? (Y) N Public Hearing? Y (N)

Readings required: (1) 2 3 If yes, dates advertised: ﬂ : ,
Ve

First reading date: Second reading date: Third/Final reading date:
January 19, 2021

Anticipated effective date if approved: January 19,2021




Exhibit A

OWDA 1/30/2020

COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT FOR CONSTRUCTION, MAINTENANCE
AND OPERATION OF STATE WATER PROJECT OR WASTEWATER PROJECT

THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into as of the date specified on Schedule I hereto
(the “Term Sheet,” which is fully incorporated herein and made a part hereof) as the “Agreement
Date,” by and between the OHIO WATER DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY, a body corporate
and politic organized and existing under the provisions of Chapter 6121 of the Revised Code of
Ohio (hereinafter referred to as the “OWDA”) and the governmental body specified as the
“LGA” on the Term Sheet (hereinafter referred to as the “LGA”), a governmental body
organized and existing under the laws of the State of Ohio and acting pursuant to an ordinance or
a resolution passed by the legislative authority thereof on the date specified on the Term Sheet as

the Resolution Date; _
WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the OWDA has been created, among other reasons, to carry forward
the declared public policy of the State of Ohio to preserve, protect, upgrade, conserve, develop,
utilize and manage the water resources of the state, to prevent or abate the pollution of water
resources, to promote the beneficial use of waters of the state for the protection and preservation
of the comfort, health, safety, convenience, and welfare, and the improvement of the economic
and general welfare and employment opportunities of and the creation of jobs for the people of
the state, and to assist and cooperate with other governmental agencies in achieving such
purposes through the establishment, operation and maintenance of water development projects
pursuant to Chapter 6121 of the Revised Code; and

WHEREAS, the water system or wastewater system (hereinafter more fully
defined and referred to as the “System™) of the LGA will require the supply of services (the
“Services™) for the treatment and/or transmission of drinking water (in the case of a water
project) or for the treatment or disposal of wastewater (in the case of a wastewater project) from
the construction, operation and maintenance of new or additional facilities (which facilities are
hereafter referred to as the “Project Facilities™); and

WHEREAS, the LGA is desirous of obtaining the Services for the System in
cooperation with the OWDA; and

WHEREAS, the OWDA is willing to cooperate with the LGA in obtaining such
Services, and the LGA has given the OWDA reasonable assurances that the LGA will make the
payments hereinafter provided for and will fulfill its other obligations hereunder; and

WHEREAS, the OWDA and LGA have determined to enter into this Agreement
to set forth their respective obligations with respect to the financing, construction, operation and
ownership of the Project Facilities;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual covenants
herein contained, the parties hereto do hereby agree as follows:



ARTICLE I - DEFINITIONS

Except where the context clearly indicates otherwise, the following terms as used
in this Agreement shall have the meaning ascribed to them in this Article:

DEFINITIONS RELATING TO PHYSICAL FACILITIES

(@)  “Approved Application” means the application of the LGA dated as of the
dated specified on the Term Sheet as the “LGA Application Date,” submitted to the OWDA,
together with all attachments, supporting documentation, amendments and supplements thereto
as approved by the OWDA on the date specified on the Term Sheet as the “OWDA. Application
Approval Date,” together with any amendments thereto approved by the LGA and the OWDA
after the date of this Agreement.

(b)  “Project Facilities” means the facilities to be constructed pursuant to this
Agreement as described generally in Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part hereof and more
particularly described in the Approved Application together with any changes therein made
pursuant to Article IIT hereof. ‘

(¢)  “Project Site” means all land, rights-of-way, property rights, easements,
franchise rights or other interests in real estate necessary for the construction and operation of the
Project Facilities.

(d)  “System” means the facilities of the LGA specified as the “System” on the
Term Sheet.

DEFINITIONS RELATING TO COSTS

(e)  “Eligible Project Costs” shall include, whether incurred before or after the
date of this Agreement (but if incurred prior to the date hereof, subject to the restrictions set forth
in the first proviso below), the following costs of the Project Facilities and the Project Site: the
purchase price of the Project Site when acquired by purchase, or the value thereof when
appropriated as found by the jury, together with the costs of the proceedings and the damages
assessed in favor of any owner of the adjoining lands and interests therein, subject to the second
proviso set forth below; the cost of demolishing or removing any buildings or structures on the
Project Site, including the cost of acquiring any lands to which such buildings or structures may
be removed, subject to the second proviso set forth below; the cost of diverting highways,
interchange of highways, and access roads to private property, including the cost of easements
therefor, subject to the second proviso set forth below; the costs of construction of the Project
Facilities including, but not limited to, the cost of all machinery, furnishings and equipment
included therein; interest on all funds disbursed by the OWDA (other than funds paid over to the
OWDA by the LGA for disbursement by the OWDA) at the Contract Interest Rate from the date
of disbursement by the OWDA of each portion thereof pursuant to Section 3.8 hereof to the first
day of the January or the July next preceding the commencement of the Contract Period of Years
based on the then existing cost allocations; engineering expenses for the Project Facilities
including, but not limited to, the cost of preliminary and other surveys, the cost of preparing
plans, estimates and specifications, the cost of all necessary soil and other investigations and
laboratory testing, and resident engineering and inspection fees; the cost of printing and

-2



publishing the notices and legislation required; legal expenses; administrative expenses of the
OWDA in the amount of 0.35% of all Eligible Project Costs other than such administrative
expenses, or $400, whichever is the greater; any obligation for the repayment of borrowed
money incurred by the LGA to the OWDA under any Cooperative Agreement for State Planning
Project between the LGA and OWDA with respect to the Project Facilities, and any other
necessary miscellaneous expenditures; provided, however, that Eligible Project Costs shall
include costs incurred prior to the date hereof only if and to the extent that, in the opinion of
nationally recognized bond counsel satisfactory to the OWDA, the payment of such costs by the
OWDA would not cause the interest on any debt obligations of the OWDA to cease to be
excluded from gross income for purposes of federal income taxation; and provided further,
however, that Eligible Project Costs shall include costs for the acquisition of real property or
interests therein (other than easements) only if the OWDA shall have received from the LGA
reasonably sufficient assurances, satisfactory to the OWDA, as to environmental matters related
to such real property. Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, Eligible
- Project Costs shall not include any commissions, fees and/or expenses which may be owed by
the LGA to a broker or finder as a result of or in connection with the OWDA'’s agreement to pay
the Eligible Project Costs to the LGA as provided herein.

DEFINITIONS RELATING TO PARTICIPATION IN COSTS

® “Original Loan Amount” means those Eligible Project Costs that are paid
with moneys disbursed out of funds of the OWDA, which costs shall in no event exceed the
amount specified on the Term Sheet as the “Maximum Original Loan Amount.”

(g) “Semiannual Payment Obligation” means the amount payable
semiannually by the LGA to amortize the Original Loan Amount over the Contract Period of
Years with interest on the outstanding balance of the Original Loan Amount at the Contract
Interest Rate. An estimate of the Semiannual Payment Obligation based on the Maximum
Original Loan Amount and the Contract Interest Rate is specified on the Term Sheet beneath the
‘Maximum Original Loan Amount.

If the Contract Period of Years commences prior to the final determination of the
Original Loan Amount, the Semiannual Payment Obligation shall be based upon the best figures
available at the time the computation of each semiannual payment is required to be made. When
such final costs are known, the Semiannual Payment Obligation shall be recomputed and the
next following semiannual payment shall be either increased or decreased by a factor sufficient
to correct for any overpayment or underpayment through the date of such recomputation so that
the total amount received by OWDA over the Contract Period of Years will be the same amount
as would have been received had the final Original Loan Amount been used in computing the
Semiannual Payment Obligation at the commencement of the Contract Period of Years. The
interest during construction computed at the Contract Interest Rate shall, however, be computed
based on the then existing cost allocations at the time of such computation and shall not be
recomputed.

(h)  “Contract Interest Rate” means the rate specified as such on the Term
Sheet.



@) “Contract Period of Years” means the period of the Contract Term
specified in the Term Sheet, commencing on the date six months prior to the First Payment Date
specified in the Term Sheet.

1)) “Default Rate” means a rate equal to the Contract Interest Rate plus three
percentage points.

(k)  “Pledged Revenues” means the revenues derived by the LGA from the
ownership and operation of the System (including, without limitation, any Special Assessment
Funds), net of the costs of operating and maintaining the System and paying all amounts required
to be paid under any Mortgage, Indenture of Mortgage, Trust Agreement or other instrument
heretofore or hereafier entered into by the LGA to secure debt obligations heretofore or hereafter
issued or incurred by the LGA for the System.

()] “Special Assessment Funds” means the proceeds from the special
assessments to be hereafter levied, if any, by the LGA to pay all or a portion of the cost of the
Project.

ARTICLE II - PROPERTY INTERESTS IN PROJECT SITE AND
PROJECT FACILITIES AND RIGHTS OF ACCESS THERETO

Section 2.1. All real estate and interests in real estate and all personal property
constituting the Project Facilities and the Project Site shall be acquired by and shall be the
property of the LGA.

Section 2.2. The LGA agrees that the OWDA and its duly authorized agents shall
have the right at all reasonable times to enter upon the Project Site and Project Facilities and to
examine and inspect the same. The LGA further agrees that the OWDA and its duly authorized
agents shall have such rights of access to the Project Site and Project Facilities as may be
reasonably necessary to enable the OWDA to exercise its rights pursuant to Section 5.8 hereof.

ARTICLE I - ACQUISITION OF PROJECT SITE, CONSTRUCTION OF
PROJECT FACILITIES AND PAYMENT OF COSTS THEREOF

Section 3.1. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the LGA
shall do all things necessary to construct the Project Facilities on the Project Site (which the
LGA hereby represents has been acquired by the LGA) by means of the construction contract(s)
specified on Exhibit B hereto. The LGA shall use its best efforts to cause the Project Facilities to
be fully operational by the date specified on the Term Sheet as the “Operational Date.”

In connection with the construction of the Project Facilities, the LGA agrees that:

(a) The construction contract(s) will provide that the representatives of the
OWDA will have access to the work whenever it is in preparation or progress and that the
contractor will provide proper facilities for such access and inspection. .



(b)  The construction of the Project Facilities on the Project Site will be
performed in compliance with all applicable federal, state and local environmental laws and
regulations in effect as of the date hereof.

(c)  All laborers and mechanics employed on the Project Facilities shall be
paid at the prevailing rates of wages of laborers and mechanics for the class of work called for by
the Project Facilities, which wages shall be determined in accordance with the requirements of
Chapter 4115, Ohio Revised Code, for determination of prevailing wage rates.

(d Prior to the commencement of construction, the LGA will arrange and
conduct a preconstruction conference to include representatives of the OWDA, the LGA and the
consulting or resident engineers of the LGA and each contractor.

(e) Each construction contract and contractor’s estimate form will be prepared
so that materials and equipment furnished to the LGA may be readily itemized.

® All requests submitted by the LGA for the payment or reimbursement of
incurred Eligible Project Costs shall include evidence of the costs incurred and will be prepared
so that such costs may be readily itemized.

(g) Any change or changes in a construction contract that would increase the
contract price by an amount in excess of one percent (1%) or any change or changes regardless
of cost that substantially modify the processes contemplated to be performed by the Project
Facilities will be submitted to the OWDA for prior approval. '

(h)  Notification of all change orders not requiring prior approval of the
OWDA will be submitted to the OWDA within one (1) month of the time at which they are
ordered by the resident or consulting engineer of the LGA.

1) The construction of the Project Facilities, including the letting of contracts
in connection therewith, will conform to applicable requirements of federal, state and local laws,
ordinances, rules and regulations.

()] The LGA will proceed expeditiously with, and complete, the Project
Facilities in accordance with the Approved Application and any surveys, plans, profiles, cross
sections and specifications or amendments thereto approved by the Director of Environmental
Protection of Ohio.

(k)  Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, the obligation
of the OWDA to pay Eligible Project Costs pursuant to the terms and conditions of this
Agreement shall expire three (3) years from the date hereof. Upon the expiration of the aforesaid
period of years, the OWDA shall not be obligated to pay any additional Eligible Project Costs to
the LGA hereunder. In the event that the OWDA, in its sole discretion, decides to pay additional
Eligible Project Costs after the expiration of its obligation to do so hereunder, it shall so notify
the LGA. No such decision by the OWDA to pay any additional Eligible Project Costs
hereunder shall be deemed to constitute an extension of its obligation to pay Eligible Project
Costs hereunder. .



Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, the LGA shall have the sole and
exclusive charge of all details of the construction of the Project Facilities.

Section 3.2. The LGA shall keep accurate records of the Eligible Project Costs.
The LGA shall permit the OWDA, acting by and through the Executive Director of the OWDA
or his authorized representatives, to inspect all books, documents, papers and records relating
thereto at any and all reasonable times for the purpose of audit and examination, and the LGA
shall submit to the OWDA such documents and information as they may reasonably require in
connection therewith.

Section 3.3. The LGA shall require that each construction contractor shall furnish
a performance and payment bond in an amount at least equal to one hundred percent (100%) of
the contractor’s contract price as security for the faithful performance of the contractor’s
contract.

Section 3.4. The LGA shall require that each of its contractors and all
subcontractors maintain during the life of their contracts Workers’ Compensation Insurance,
Public Liability, Property Damage, and Vehicle Liability Insurance, in amounts and on terms that
comply with all applicable legal requirements and that are commercially reasonable. Until the
Project Facilities are completed and accepted by the LGA, the LGA or (at the option of the LGA)
the contractor shall maintain Builders Risk Insurance (fire and extended coverage) on a one
hundred percent (100%) basis (completed value form) on the insurable portion of the Project
Facilities for the benefit of the OWDA, the LGA, the prime contractor, and all subcontractors, as
their respective interests may appear.

Section 3.5. The LGA shall provide and maintain competent and adequate
resident engineering services satisfactory to the OWDA covering the supervision and inspection
of the development and construction of the Project Facilities and bearing the responsibility of
ensuring that construction conforms with the approved surveys, plans, profiles, cross sections
and specifications and certifying to the OWDA and the LGA at the completion of construction
that construction is in accordance with the approved surveys, plans, profiles, cross sections and
specifications or approved amendments thereto.

Section 3.6. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the Eligible
Project Costs shall be paid by the OWDA. In the event this Agreement is terminated by the
OWDA pursuant to, and not in breach of, the provisions of this Agreement, or by subsequent
agreement of the parties, or in the event this Agreement is terminated by the LGA, whether or
not in breach of the Agreement, the Eligible Project Costs incurred prior to the date of the
commencement of the construction of the Project Facilities or the date of such termination,
whichever is earlier, shall be paid by the LGA. If such termination takes place following the
date of the commencement of the construction of the Project Facilities, all Eligible Project Costs
incurred following such commencement date and prior to the date of termination, with the
exception of all costs attributable to the acquisition of the Project Site, shall be borne by: (1) the
LGA if this Agreement is terminated at such time by the LGA; or (2) by the OWDA if this
Agreement is terminated at such time by the OWDA, but in any event, all costs attributable to
the acquisition of the Project Site shall be borne by the LGA. Any moneys paid by either party
hereto pursuant to this Agreement which become the obligation of the other party under the

-6-



provisions of this Section shall be repaid in not more than three (3) years after termination with
interest on the outstanding balances at the Contract Interest Rate.

Section 3.7. The OWDA may decline to deliver any further certificates of
availability of funds pursuant to Section 3.8 hereof from and after any determination by the
OWDA that any information furnished to the OWDA, in writing or otherwise, in connection with
the LGA’s application for the transactions contemplated by this Agreement was false or
misleading in any material respect or that such information omitted any other information needed
to make the information furnished not false or misleading in any material respect.

Section 3.8. Subject to Section 3.7 hereof, the OWDA shall deliver to the LGA a
certificate, certifying that moneys in the amount necessary to pay the Eligible Project Costs
obligated or to be obligated up to the Maximum Original Loan Amount are available or are in the
process of collection and have been encumbered by the Authority. When such Eligible Project
Costs have been incurred and payment requested from the OWDA by the LGA in form and detail
satisfactory to the OWDA, the OWDA shall cause to be delivered checks in payment of the
invoices, demands for payment, approved contractors’ estimates or other evidence of cost
incurrence to the persons or entities entitled to payment in conformity with the encumbrance of
funds set forth to pay such obligated Eligible Project Costs.

Section 3.9. The LGA represents and agrees that it will not seek or obtain
alternative funding for the Eligible Project Costs of the Project Site and the Project Facilities
without the prior written consent of the OWDA. The LGA acknowledges that the OWDA may
inform potential and actual investors of bonds issued by the OWDA regarding the details of this
Agreement, and that such investors may make an investment decision based on this Agreement.

Section 3.10. Upon completion of the Project Facilities, the LGA shall make a
full and complete accounting to the OWDA of the final Eligible Project Costs.

ARTICLE IV - PAYMENTS BY LGA

Section 4.1. Subject to the further provisions hereinafter set forth, the LGA
agrees to and shall pay semiannually on January 1 and July 1 of each year of the Contract Period
of Years, commencing on the First Payment Date (each such date a “Due Date™), to the OWDA,
but solely from the Pledged Revenues, the Semiannual Payment Obligation. In the event that the
LGA pays less than the full amount due hereunder on any Due Date, then the amount so paid
shall be applied first to interest payable hereunder, then to any late charges payable hereunder,
and then to the Original Loan Amount payable hereunder. The LGA acknowledges and agrees
that the OWDA afforded the LGA the opportunity to choose between a schedule of payments
based on equal principal payments and one based on equal debt service payments and that the
estimated Semiannual Payment Obligation shown on the Term Sheet reflect the choice of the
LGA.

The obligation of the LGA to pay the charges set forth shall not be assignable, and
the LGA shall not be discharged therefrom, without the prior written consent of the OWDA. In
the event that services supplied by the Project Facilities or any other portion of the System shall
cease or be suspended for any reason, the LGA shall continue to be obligated to pay the charges

-7-



pursuant to this Section 4.1, but solely from the Pledged Revenues. If the LGA does not pay any
of the charges set forth in this Section 4.1 on or before the Sth day after the Due Date, the
amount of such default shall bear interest at the Default Rate from the Due Date until the date of
the payment thereof. Interest at the Default Rate shall be calculated for the actual number of
days of default from the Due Date until payment on the basis of a 360 day year. If the LGA does
not pay any of the charges set forth in this Section 4.1 on or before the 30th day after the Due
Date, in addition to the interest calculated at the Default Rate, a “late charge” of one percent
(1%) on the amount of each default shall also be paid to the OWDA by the LGA from the
Pledged Revenues for failure to make the payment as provided herein. Thereafter, for each
additional thirty (30) days during which the charges remain unpaid, the LGA shall continue to
pay from the Pledged Revenues an additional late charge of one percent (1%) on the amount of
such default until such charges are paid. In no event shall the OWDA collect interest or late
charges in excess of the maximum amount permitted by law. In addition to the foregoing, in the
event of a default as aforesaid, all of the costs incurred by the OWDA in curing such default
including, but not limited to, court costs and attorney fees, shall (to the extent not previously
repaid to the OWDA and to the fullest extent permitted by law) be paid as part of the Eligible
Project Costs hereunder and be repaid by the LGA to the OWDA as part of the Original Loan
Amount.

Anything in this Agreement to the contrary notwithstanding, neither the general
resources of the LGA shall be required to be used, nor shall the general credit of the LGA be
pledged for the performance of any duty under this Agreement, but any payment to be made
under this Agreement shall be required to be made only from the Pledged Revenues, which are
hereby pledged to such payment; provided, however, that, if otherwise lawful, nothing herein
shall be deemed to prohibit the LGA from using, of its own volition, any of its general resources
for the fulfillment of any of the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

Section 4.2. It is agreed that, no later than June 15 and December 15 of each year
of the Contract Period of Years, the OWDA shall invoice the LGA for the sum payable by the
LGA pursuant to Section 4.1 and that payment of each such invoice shall be made by the LGA to
the OWDA not later than the first day of the following month. No failure by the OWDA to send
any such invoice and no failure by the LGA to receive any such invoice shall relieve the LGA
from its obligation to pay the amount due hereunder on the applicable Due Date.

Section 4.3. The LGA hereby agrees that: (a) from and after the completion and
placement into operation of the Project Facilities, it will at all times prescribe and charge such
rates for the services of the System as shall result in Pledged Revenues at least adequate to
provide for the payments required by Section 4.1 hereof and shall from time to time at the
request of the Authority cause a study of the sufficiency of the LGA’s rates for that purpose to be
done by an independent expert acceptable to the OWDA; (b) the LGA will furnish to the OWDA
annually reports of the operation and income of the System and also an annual report of the
accounts and operations of the System and such other documents as the OWDA may reasonably
request in order to respond to requests for documentation from rating agencies or providers or
potential providers of credit enhancement for debt obligations of the OWDA, and the LGA will
permit the authorized agent of the OWDA to inspect all records, accounts and data of the System
at all reasonable times; and (c) that the LGA will segregate the revenues, funds and properties of
the System from all other funds and properties of the LGA. All of the obligations under this

-8-



Section are hereby established as duties specifically enjoined by law and resulting from an
office, trust or station upon the LGA within the meaning of Section 2731.01 of the Ohio Revised
Code.

Section 4.4. If the LGA pays all or any portion of the Semiannual Payment
Obligation from Special Assessment Funds and if any payor of the Special Assessment Funds
elects to pay the special assessments in a one-time, lump-sum payment in lieu of having the
special assessments certified to the appropriate county auditor for periodic collection, then the
LGA may elect to apply the amount of such payment to a reduction of the Original Loan Amount
by including that amount with its next payment of the Semiannual Payment Obligation pursuant
to Section 4.1 hereof, accompanied by a written notice to the Authority identifying the amount so
included and directing the Authority so to apply that amount. Upon the receipt of such payment
and notice, the Authority shall recompute the remaining payments of the Semiannual Payment
Obligation based on the reduced Original Loan Amount and shall notify the LGA in writing of
the reduced amount of the remaining payments.

Section 4.5. In order to enable the OWDA to comply with the requirements of
federal securities laws (including, without limitation, Rule 10b-5 and Rule 15¢2-12 (“Rule 15¢2-
12”) each promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended), the LGA agrees to prepare and file with the
OWDA or, at the direction of the OWDA, to file with the Municipal Securities Rulemaking
Board (“MSRB”) through the EMMA System (as defined below), any annual financial
information or material events disclosures that the OWDA may determine it requires to achieve
such compliance. The LGA consents to the OWDA’s incorporation by reference into OWDA
official statements or other OWDA filings with the MSRB of any official statements or portions
thereof, financial statements, or other documents that the LGA may have filed or may file with
the MSRB. In the event the LGA fails to prepare any financial statement or other financial
information that this Section requires the LGA to prepare and file with or at the direction of the
OWDA, then the OWDA shall have the right (in addition to any other rights it may have to
enforce the obligations of the LGA hereunder) to inspect all records, accounts and data of the
System and cause the preparation of the required financial statement or information and to
employ such professionals as it may reasonably require for that purpose, and to be reimbursed
from any available Pledged Revenues for the costs of its doing so. This Section shall not be
construed to limit the generality of Section 4.3 hereof. For purposes of this Section 4.7, “EMMA
System” shall mean the Electronic Municipal Market Access system of the MSRB for use in the
collection and dissemination of information, which system the SEC has stated to be consistent
with its Rule 15¢2-12. Currently, the website address for EMMA is emma.msrb.org. The LGA
acknowledges that the OWDA is not responsible for any of the LGA’s required filings under
Rule 15¢2-12 related to other indebtedness of the LGA, including, but not limited to, as to
whether this Agreement is considered a “Financial Obligation” under Rule 15¢2-12.

ARTICLE V - MAINTENANCE, OPERATION, INSURANCE AND CONDEMNATION

Section 5.1. The LGA agrees that during the Contract Period of Years that: (a) it
will, subject to its right to contest in good faith the issue of non-compliance, operate the Project

-9.



Facilities and the System, or cause them to be operated, in compliance with all applicable
federal, state and local environmental laws and regulations in effect during such period, and (b) it
will, subject to its right to discontinue use or operation of the Project Facilities or the System or
any part thereof in accordance with this Agreement, keep the Project Facilities and the System,
including all appurtenances thereto and the equipment and machinery therein, or cause them to
be kept, in good repair and good operating condition so that the completed Project Facilities and
System will continue to operate with substantially the same efficiency as when first constructed.

The LGA shall have the privilege of making additions, modifications and
improvements to, making deletions from and discontinuing the use or operation of all or any part
of, the Project Site, the Project Facilities, and the System from time to time; provided, that the
cost of any additions, modifications and improvements shall be paid by the LGA, and the same
shall be the property of the LGA and be included under the terms of this Agreement as part of
the Project Site or the Project Facilities, as the case may be, and the System; and provided further
that the LGA shall make no modification to, make any deletion from or discontinue the use or
operation of all or any part of, the Project Site, the Project Facilities, or the System, the result of
which would be a material decrease in the Pledged Revenues without first obtaining the written
consent of the OWDA thereto.

Section 5.2. The LGA agrees that it will commence, or will cause to be
commenced, operation of the Project Facilities immediately upon the completion of the
construction thereof and the receipt of any governmental approvals required for the
commencement of their operation, and will not discontinue operation of the Project Facilities or
any other part of the System without meeting all conditions to and requirements for such
discontinuance imposed by law and this Agreement. The LGA agrees that it will provide
adequate operation and maintenance of the Project Facilities and the System to comply with all
applicable water quality standards established for the river basin served by the Project Facilities
and with all applicable rules and regulations of the Director of Environmental Protection of
Ohio. The LGA agrees that sufficient qualified operating personnel will be retained by the LGA
to operate the Project Facilities and the System, or will be required to be obtained by any
independent contractor engaged by the LGA to operate the Project Facilities and the System or
any portion thereof, and that all operational tests and measurements necessary to determine
compliance ‘with the preceding sentence will be performed to insure proper and efficient
operation and maintenance of the Project Facilities and each other part of the System until the
end of the Contract Period of Years or the discontinuance of the operation of the Project
Facilities or of such other part of the System in accordance with Section 5.1 and this Section 5.2.

The LGA will permit the OWDA and its agents to have access to the records of
the LGA pertaining to the operation and maintenance of the Project Facilities and the System at
any reasonable time.

Section 5.3. The LGA agrees to insure, or cause to be insured, the Project
Facilities and the System in such amounts as similar properties are usually insured by political
subdivisions similarly situated, against loss or damage of the kinds usually insured against by
political subdivisions similarly situated, by means of policies issued by reputable insurance
companies duly qualified to do such business in the State of Ohio.

-10 -



Section 5.4. Any insurance policy issued pursuant to Section 5.3 hereof shall be
so written or endorsed as to make losses, if any, payable to the OWDA and the LGA as their
respective interests may appear. Each insurance policy provided for in Sections 5.3 and 5.6
hereof shall contain a provision to the effect that the insurance company shall not cancel the
same without first giving written notice thereof to the OWDA and the LGA at least ten (10) days
in advance of such cancellation.

Section 5.5. The net proceeds of the insurance carried pursuant to the provisions
of Sections 5.3 and 5.6 hereof shall be applied as follows: (i) the net proceeds of the insurance
required in Section 5.3 hereof shall be applied as provided in Section 5.9 hereof, and (ii) the net
proceeds of the insurance required in Section 5.6 hereof shall be applied toward extinguishment
or satisfaction of the liability with respect to which such insurance proceeds may be paid.

Section 5.6. The LGA agrees that it will carry, or will cause to be carried, public
hab111ty insurance with reference to the Project Facilities with one or more reputable insurance
companies duly qualified to do business in the State of Ohio, in minimum amounts of $500,000
for the death of or personal injury to one person and $1,000,000 for personal injury or death for
each occurrence in connection with the Project Facilities and $500,000 for property damage for
any occurrence in connection with the Project Facilities. The OWDA shall be made an
additional insured under such policies.

Section 5.7. Throughout the Contract Period of Years, the LGA shall maintain
Workers’ Compensation Coverage or cause the same to be maintained in accordance with state
law.

Section 5.8. In the event the LGA shall fail to maintain, or cause to be
maintained, the full insurance coverage required by this Agreement or shall fail to keep, or cause
to be kept, the Project Facilities in good repair and operating condition, or shall fail to operate, or
cause to be operated, the Project Facilities in accordance with Section 5.2 hereof, the OWDA
may (but shall be under no obligation to) take out the required policies of insurance and pay the
premiums on the same or may make such repairs or replacements as are necessary or may hire
the necessary operating personnel to insure compliance with Section 5.2 and provide for payment
thereof; and all amounts so advanced therefor by the OWDA shall become an additional
obligation of the LGA to the OWDA which amounts, together with interest thereon at the
Contract Interest Rate or at the rate of eight per centum (8%) per annum, whichever is greater,
from the date thereof, the LGA agrees to pay.

Section 5.9. If prior to the completion of the Contract Period of Years the Project
Facilities shall be damaged or partially or totally destroyed by fire, flood, windstorm or other
casualty, there shall be no abatement or reduction in the amounts payable by the LGA pursuant
to Section 4.1 hereof, and the LGA will (i) promptly repair, rebuild or restore the property
damaged or destroyed, and (ii) apply for such purpose so much as may be necessary of any net
proceeds of insurance policies resulting from claims for such losses as well as any additional
moneys of the LGA necessary therefor. All net proceeds of insurance resulting from claims for
such losses shall be paid to the LGA.

-11-



Section 5.10. In the event that title to or the temporary use of the Project Site the
Project Facilities, or the System, or any part thereof, shall be taken under the exercise of the
power of eminent domain by any governmental body or by any person, firm or corporation
acting under governméntal authority, there shall be no abatement or reduction in the amounts
payable by the LGA pursuant to Section 4.1 hereof, and any net proceeds received from any
award made in such eminent domain proceedings shall be paid to and held by the LGA in a
separate condemnation award account and shall be applied by the LGA in either or both the
following ways as shall be determined by the LGA:

(a)  The restoration of the facilities of the System to substantially the same
condition as they existed prior to the exercise of said power of eminent domain, or

(b)  The acquisition of additional real estate, if necessary, and facilities, by
construction or otherwise, equivalent that, when added to the remaining real estate and facilities
of the System, will cause the System to be substantially the equivalent of the System as it existed
prior to the exercise of said power of eminent domain, which real estate and facilities shall be
deemed a part of the Project Site or the Project Facilities, as the case may be, and the System,
without the payment of any amounts other than herein provided, to the same extent as if such real
estate and facilities were specifically described herein.

Any balance of the net proceeds of the award in such eminent domain
proceedings shall be paid to the LGA upon delivery to the-OWDA of a certificate signed by an
authorized officer of the LGA that the LGA has complied with either paragraph (a) or (b), or
both, of this Section. The OWDA shall cooperate fully with the LGA in the handling and
conduct of any prospective or pending condemnation proceedings with respect to the Project
Site, the Project Facilities, the System, or any part thereof. In no event will the LGA voluntarily
settle or consent to the settlement of any prospective or pending condemnation proceedings with
respect to the Project Site, the Project Facilities, the System or any part thereof without the
written consent of the OWDA.

ARTICLE VI - REPRESENTATIONS AND AGREEMENTS
OF THE LGA IN REGARD TO ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS;
EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES THEREFOR;
INDEMNIFICATION

Section 6.1. The LGA hereby represents that:

(a) It is, and the LGA hereby covenants that it shall remain, in compliance
with all applicable federal, state and local environmental laws and regulations applicable to the
System during the Contract Period of Years, subject to its right to contest in good faith the issue
of non-compliance;

(b)  There is no litigation or administrative action or proceeding pending or, to
the best of its knowledge, threatened against the LGA, alleging a violation of any federal, state or
local environmental law or regulation applicable to the System except as set forth in the attached;

-12-



(¢)  No judgment or consent order has been rendered against it, nor is it a party
to any agreement, which consent order, judgment or agreement imposes, will impose or has
imposed any fines or monetary penalties for the violation of any federal, state or local
environmental law or regulation applicable to the System that have not been paid in full except
as set forth in the attached; and

Section 6.2. The LGA agrees that each of the following shall be an event of
default (“Event of Default”) under this Agreement: '

(@  The LGA shall fail to make any payment to the OWDA required pursuant
to this Agreement when the same is due and payable, including, without limitation, any amount
due and payable pursuant to Article IV hereof; or

(b) The LGA shall fail to observe and perform any other obligations,
agreements or provisions herein, which failure shall continue for thirty (30) days after receipt of
written notice thereof from the OWDA,; provided, however, that such failure shall not constitute
an Event of Default under this Agreement if the LGA demonstrates both of the following to the
satisfaction of the OWDA.: i) cure of such failure cannot be effected within thirty (30) days; and
ii) the LGA is taking all reasonably necessary actions to cure such failure with all deliberate
speed. ‘

(c)  Any representations made by the LGA in Section 6.1. shall at any time
during the Contract Period of Years prove to be false. )

Section 6.3. Whenever an Event of Default shall have happened and be
subsisting, the OWDA may exercise any and all rights and remedies for the enforcement of the
obligations of the LGA hereunder. In addition to any other rights or remedies provided herein, by
law or otherwise, the OWDA may: ’

(@  declare the full amount of the then unpaid Original Loan Amount to be
immediately due and payable;

(b)  to the extent permitted under any judgment, consent order or agreement
affecting the LGA, require the LGA to agree to subordinate the payment of any fines or penalties
imposed for the violation of any federal, state or local environmental law or regulation applicable
to the System to the payment of the Original Loan Amount and the interest and any late charges
~ due thereon, and the LGA hereby agrees to use its best efforts to effect such subordination.

Section 6.4. No right or remedy conferred upon the OWDA under Section 6.3
hereof is intended to be exclusive of any other right or remedy given herein, by law or otherwise.
Each right or remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy given
herein, by law or otherwise.

Section 6.5. The LGA releases the OWDA from, agrees that the OWDA shall not
be liable for, and agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to hold the OWDA, its officers,
employees and agents harmless against, any loss or damage to property, or any loss or injury to
or death of any person, or any other loss or damage, that may be occasioned by any cause
whatsoever pertaining to the System, the Project Facilities, or the use thereof; provided that such

-13 -



indemnity under this Section shall not be effective for damages that result from negligent or
intentional acts of the OWDA, its officers, employees and agents. The LGA further agrees, to
the fullest extent permitted by law, to indemnify and hold harmless the OWDA and its officers,
employees and agents against and from any and all cost, liability, expenses and claims arising
from any breach or default on the part of the LGA in the performance of any covenant or
agreement on the part of the LGA to be performed pursuant to the terms of this Agreement,
arising from the acquisition, construction, installation, or improvement of the Project

Facilities or arising from any act or negligence of or failure to act by the LGA, or any of its
agents, contractors, servants, employees or licensees, or arising from any accident, injury or
damage whatsoever caused to any person, firm, or corporation resulting from the Project
Facilities or the System (other than any accident, injury, or damage that results from negligent or
intentional acts of the OWDA, its officers, employees and agents), and from and against all cost,
liability and expenses incurred in or in connection with any such claim or action, arbitration or
proceeding brought thereon.

In case any action or proceeding be brought against the OWDA by reason of any
claim described in this Section, the OWDA agrees to cause written notice of such action or
proceeding to be given to the LGA, and the LGA upon notice from the OWDA covenants to
resist or defend such action or proceedings at the LGA’s expense including all legal and other
expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees).

Section 6.6  Each party agrees that the venue of any suit, action or proceedings
relating to this Agreement will be the courts of the County of Franklin, Ohio or the Ohio
Supreme Court, and each party irrevocably waives any objection that it may have to that venue
and waives any right to trial by jury for any such suit, action or proceedings.

ARTICLE VII - PRIVATE BUSINESS USE RESTRICTIONS

Section 7.1. The LGA acknowledges that the OWDA may issue tax-exempt
bonds to provide the funds to meet OWDA’s obligations with regard to funding the applicable
program and that the maintenance of the tax-exempt status of any such bonds will depend, in
part, on the LGA's compliance with the provisions of this Agreement. Accordingly, the LGA
agrees as follows:

(a) That it shall take no action that would cause bonds issued by the
OWDA, the proceeds of which could fund this Agreement (the "OWDA Bonds") to fail to
qualify as tax-exempt bonds, nor omit to take any action necessary to maintain such status;

(b) That it shall take any action that the OWDA reasonably may request it
to take to maintain the status of the OWDA Bonds as tax-exempt bonds;

(c) That, to assure that the OWDA Bonds will not be or become "private
activity bonds" within the meaning of 26 U.S.C.A. Section 141 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986, as amended:. ' :

-14 -



(i) The LGA shall not permit, at any time ten percent (10%) or more (in
the aggregate) of that portion of the Project Facilities to be financed with funds borrowed from
the OWDA hereunder (the "OWDA Funds") to be used by any person or persons for any private
business use (as hereinafter defined) while at the same time the payment of principal of, or the
interest on, the OWDA Funds is directly or indirectly (A) secured by any interest in (1) property
used or to be used for a private business use or (2) payments made with respect to such property
or (B) derived from (1) payments with respect to such property (whether or not made to the
OWDA) or (2) borrowed money used or to be used for private business use.

(i1) No portion of the OWDA Funds will be used to make or finance loans
to persons other than other governmental units.

For purposes of this Agreement, "private business use" means use (directly or
indirectly) in a trade or business carried on by any person other than a governmental unit (as
hereinafter defined). Use of any Project Facility or Project Site as a member of the general public
will not be considered a private business use. Any activity carried on by a person other than a
natural person shall be treated as a trade or business. Use by an organization which qualifies
under 26 U.S.C.A. Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as it may be
amended from time to tifne, shall be considered a private business use.

For purposes of this Agreement, "governmental unit" means a political
subdivision within the United States, including any political subdivision within the State of Ohio,
but does not mean the United States or any of its governmental branches, departments or
agencies.

If there is any question about the application of the foregoing restrictions relating
to private business uses or loans, the LGA agrees to immediately write the OWDA requesting
assistance prior to entering into any agreement which may be prohibited as provided herein.

(111) The LGA shall not re-loan, directly or indirectly, any portion of the
amounts advanced to it under this Agreement to any.person;

(d) That, to assure that the OWDA Bonds will not be or become "arbitrage
bonds" within the meaning of 26 U.S.C.A. Section 148 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended, the LGA, except upon the prior written consent of the OWDA, shall not create or
permit to exist any fund pledged to, or expressly reserved exclusively for, the payment of
amounts payable by the LGA hereunder.

Section 7.2. The OWDA shall not be required to, and shall not, consent to any
action by the LGA referred to in Section 7.1 unless it first shall have received an opinion of
nationally recognized bond counsel to the effect that the consummation of the transaction or

-15-



transactions contemplated by such action will not adversely affect the tax-exempt status of the
OWDA bonds.

Section 7.3. If the LGA shall have any question about the application of Section
7.1., in the particular circumstances faced by it at any time during the term of this Agreement, it
shall immediately inform the OWDA of the circumstances and request the OWDA's assistance to
resolve any such questions, to the end that the tax-exempt status of the OWDA Bonds and of the
OWDA's bonds would be preserved.

ARTICLE VIII - MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

Section 8.1. Any invoice, accounting, demand, or other communication under
this Agreement by either party to the other shall be sufficiently given or delivered if it is
dispatched by regular, registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, or delivered personally, and

@) in the case of the OWDA, is addressed to or delivered personally to the

OWDA at:
The Ohio Water Development Authority
480 South High Street
Columbus, OH 43215

and

(ii) in the case of the LGA, is addressed to or delivered personally to the LGA
at the address listed on the Term Sheet as the “LGA Notice Address,” or at such other addresses
with respect to either such party as that party may from time to time, designate in writing and
forward to the other as provided in this Section.

Section 8.2. Any approval of the OWDA required by this Agreement shall not be
unreasonably withheld and shall be deemed to have been given on the thirtieth day following the
submission of the matter requiring approval to the Executive Director of the OWDA unless
disapproved in writing prior to such thirtieth day. Any provision of the Agreement requiring the
approval of the OWDA or the satisfaction or evidence of satisfaction of the OWDA, shall be
interpreted as requiring action by the Executive Director of the OWDA granting, authorizing or
expressing such approval or satisfaction, as the case may be, unless such provision expressly
provides otherwise.

Section 8.3. Upon request of the OWDA, the LGA agrees to execute the
information report required by Section 149 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as it may be
amended from time to time, with respect to this Agreement, such form to be completed by the
OWDA on the basis of information provided by the LGA. The LGA hereby agrees that the
OWDA may file such information report for and on behalf of the LGA with the Internal Revenue
Service.

-16 -



Section 8.4. This Agreement is made subject to, and conditional upon, the
approval of this Agreement as to form by the General Counsel of the OWDA and upon the
certification of availability of funds as provided in Section 3.8 hereof.

Section 8.5. This Agreement shall become effective as of the date first set forth
hereinabove and shall continue in full force and effect until all obligations of the LGA under
Section 4.1 hereof have been fully satisfied.

Section 8.6. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the
parties hereto and to any person, office, board, department, agency, municipal corporation, or
body politic and corporate succeeding by operation of law to the powers and duties of either of
the parties hereto. This Agreement shall not he assigned by the LGA without the prior written
consent of the OWDA. The OWDA, at its option, may assign this Agreement without the
consent of the LGA. All references to the Environmental Protection Agency of the United States
of America or to the Director of Environmental Protection of the State of Ohio or to any offices
or divisions of either shall include any successors thereto.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be
executed by their respective duly authorized officers as of the day and year first hereinabove
written.

APPROVED AS TO FORM OHIO WATER DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY
By:
OWDA General Counsel OWDA Executive Director
APPROVED AS TO FORM LGA:
By:
LGA Legal Officer or Counsel
By:

-17 -



Exhibit A
PROJECT FACILITIES DESCRIPTION



Exhibit B
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT(S)



Schedule |

TERM SHEET

NOTE: The term sheet will be generated by OWDA after the loan is approved at the board meeting.



Resolution No. 2552-19 PID #104893

FINAL RESOLUTION
Resolution No. 2599-21

A resolution to authorize the Ohio Department of Transportation to proceed with the
pavement planing and resurfacing with asphalt concrete, including pavement markings,
of the existing United States Route 36 within the City of Urbana between Locust Street

and Berwick Drive and State Route 29 between United States Route 36 and Bon Air

Drive; to authorize the Fiscal Officer (Director of Finance)to appropriate and issue
payment to the State of Ohioin the amount of $123,984.00 toward said project; to
authorize the Director of Administration to sign any contracts or other documents related
to said project; and declaring an emergency.

The following Final Resolution enacted by the City of Urbana, Ohio, hereinafter referred
to as the Legislative Authority/Local Public Agency or "LPA", in the matter of the stated
described project.

WHEREAS, on 16" day of April, 2019, the LPA enacted legislation proposing
cooperation with the Director of Transportation for the described project:

The project consists of resurfacing U.S. 36 between Locust Street and Berwick
Drive and S.R. 29 between U.S. 36 and Bon Air Drive, including pavement
markings, lying within the City of Urbana; and

WH EREAS_, the LPA shall cooperate with the Director of Transportation in the above
described project as follows:

The City agrees to assume and bear one hundred percent (100%) of the entire
cost of the improvement within the city limits, less the amount of Federal-Aid
funds set aside by the Director of Transportation for the financing of this
improvement from funds allocated by the Federal Highway Administration, U.S.
Department of Transportation.

The share of the cost of the LPA is now estimated in the amount of One Hundred Twenty-
Three Thousand Nine Hundred Eighty-Four and - - - - 00/100 Dollars, ($123,984.00),
but said estimated amountis to be adjusted in order that the LPA's ultimate share of said
improvement shall correspond with said percentages of actual costs when said actual costs
are determined; and

WHEREAS, The Director of Transportation has approved said legislation proposing
cooperation and has caused to be made plans and specifications and an estimate of cost
and expense for improvingthe above described highwayand has transmitted copies of the
same to this legislative authority; and



PID #104893

WHEREAS, The LPA desires the Director of Transportation to proceed
with the aforesaid highway improvement.

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved:

Passed:

Attested:
Attested:
Attested:

That the estimated sum, of One Hundred Twenty-Three Thousand Nine
Hundred Eighty-Four and - - - - 00/100 Dollars, ($123,984.00), is hereby

. appropriated for the improvement described above and the fiscal officer is

hereby authorized and directed to issue an order for said sum upon the
requisition of the Director of Transportation to pay the cost and expense of said
improvement. We hereby agree to assume in the first instance, the share of the
cost and expense over and above the amountto be paid from Federal funds.
That the LPA hereby requests the Director of Transportation to proceed with the
aforesaid highway improvement.

That the LPA enter into a contract with the State, and that the Director of
Administration be, andis hereby authorized to execute said contract, providing
for the payment of the LPA the sum of money set forth herein above for
improving the described project.

That the LPA transmit to the Director of Transportation a fully executed copy of
this Resolution.

That this resolution is hereby declared to be an emergency measure to preserve
public safety and highway safety. It shalltake effectand be in force immediately
upon its passage and approval.

,2020.

(Clerk of Council)

(President of Council)

(Mayor)

This is to certify that | have compared the foregoing copy of Resolution with the original record
thereof, foundin the recaord of the proceedings of the LPA, and which Resolution was duly passed
by the LPA on the ___day of ,2___, and that the same is a true and correct copy of

the record of said Resolution and the action of said LPA theron.

| further certify that said Resolution and the action of said LPA thereon is recorded in the journal of

said LPAin Volume , at Page , and under date of , 2
Clerk of Council
(Seal)
Department requesting: Community Development Personnel: D. Crabill Director of Law review
Expenditure? (Y) N I Emergency? (Y) N Public Hearing? Y  (N)
Readings required: (1) 2 3 If yes, dates advertised: m
First reading date: Second reading date: Third/Final reading date: ) gi g
1/19/21

Anticipated effective date if approved: January 19,2021




PID No. 104893

FISCAL OFFICER’S CERTIFICATE
(Chapter 56521 and Section 5705.41, Ohio Revised Code)

| hereby certify to that the money, to wit: $123,984.00 required for the payment of the
cost other than that thereof assumed by the Federal Government, for the improvement
of that portion of U.S. 36/S.R. 29, lying within the corporate limits of the City of Urbana,
more particularly described as follows:

The project consists of resurfacing U.S. 36 between Locust Street and
Berwick Drive and S.R. 29 between U.S. 36 and Bon Air Drive, including
pavement markings, lying within the City of Urbana; and

has been lawfully appropriated for such purpose and is in the treasury to the credit of, or
has been levied placed on the duplicate and in process of collection for the appropriate
fund, and not appropriated for any other purpose; or is being obtained by sale of bonds
issued on account of said improvement, which bonds are sold and in process of delivery.

| further certify that this certificate was made, sealed and filed with the legislative
authority of the City of Urbana, Ohio, after said legislative authority passed the final
resolution in connection with the within described project; and that this certificate was
forthwith recorded in the record of the proceedings of said legislative authority, namely:

Legislative Authority’s Journal, Volume __,atPage '

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand and official seal as said fiscal

officer, this day of , 20

(Fiscal Officer's Seal)
(If Applicable) -

Fiscal Officer of the City of
_Urbana, Ohio



PID No. 104893

CONTRACT
(Chapter 5521, Ohio Revised Code)

This contract is made by and between the State of Ohio, Department of
Transportation, acting through its director (hereinafter referred to as the "STATE"), 1980
West Broad Street, Columbus, Ohio 43223, and the City of Urbana, (hereinafter referred
to as the legislative authority/Local Public Agency or "LPA").

WITNESSTH:

WHEREAS, Chapter 5521 of the Ohio Revised Code provides that the legislative
authority may cooperate with the STATE in a highway project made by and under the
supervision of the Director of Transportation; and

WHEREAS, through the enactment of preliminary legislation, the LPA and the STATE
have agreed to cooperate in the highway project described below; and

WHEREAS, through the enactment of final legislation, the LPA has committed to pay
an estimated amount of money as its share of the total estimated cost and expense of the
highway project described below; and

WHEREAS, the fiscal officer of the LPA has filed with the LPA a certificate stating that
sufficient moneys are available, as required by Chapter 5521 and Section 5§705.41 of the
Ohio Revised Code. A duplicate certificate is attached hereto; and :

WHEREAS, in accordance with the final legislation, the LPA hereby enters into this
contract with the STATE to provide for payment of the agreed portion of the cost of the
highway project and any additional obligations for the highway project described below.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the performances of mutual
covenants hereinafter set forth, it is agreed by parties hereto as follows:

SECTION I: RECITALS

The foregoing recitals are hereby incorporated as a material part of this contract.
SECTION li: PURPOSE

The purpose of this contract is to set forth requirements associated with the highway

project described below (hereinafter referred to as the "PROJECT") and to establish the
responsibilities for the administration of the PROJECT by the LPA and the STATE.



PID No. 104893
SECTION lli: LEGAL REFERENCES
This contract is established pursuant to Chapter 5521 of the Ohio Revised Co&e.
SECTION IV: SCOPE OF WORK
The work to be performed under this contract shall consist of the following:
The project consists of resurfacing U.S. 36 between Locust Street and Berwick
Drive and S.R. 29 between U.S. 36 and Bon Air Drive, including pavement
markings, lying within the City of Urbana.

SECTIONV: FINANCIAL PARTICIPATION

1. The STATE agrees to pfovide the necessary funds as enumerated in this section
and allowed by law for the financing of this project.

2. The STATE may allocate the money contributed by the LPA in whatever manner
it deems necessary in financing the cost of construction, right-of-way, engineering,
and incidental expenses, notwithstanding the percentage basis of contribution by
the LPA,

3. The total cost and expenses for the project are only an estimate and the total cost
and expenses may be adjusted by the STATE. If any adjustments are required,
payment of additional funds shall correspond with the percentages of actual costs
when said actual costs are determined, and as requested, by the Director of
Transportation.

4, The LPA agrees to pay to the STATE its share of the total estimated cost expense
for the above highway project in the amount of One Hundred Twenty-Three
Thousand Nine Hundred Eighty-Four and - - - - 00/100 Dollars, ($123,984.00).

5. The City agrees to assume and bear one hundred percent (100%) of the entire
cost of the improvement within the city limits, less the amount of Federal-
Aid funds set aside by the Director of Transportation for the financing of this
improvement from funds allocated by the Federal Highway Administration,
U. S. Department of Transportation.

6. The LPA agrees to assume and bear One Hundred Percent (100%) of the cost of
any construction items required by the LPA on the entire project, which are not
necessary for the improvement, as determined by the State and Federal Highway
Administration.

7. The LPA agrees that change orders and extra work contracts required fulfilling the
construction contracts shall be processed as needed. The STATE shall not
approve a change order or extra work contract until it first gives notice, in writing,
to the LPA. The LPA shall contribute its share of the cost of these items in
accordance with other sections herein.



PID No. 104893

SECTION VI: RIGHT-OF-WAY AND UTILITIES

1.

1.

The LPA agrees that all right-of-way required for the described project will be
acquired and/or made available in accordance with current State and Federal
regulations. The LPA also understands that right-of-way costs include eligible
utility costs.

The LPA agrees that all utility accommodation, relocation, and reimbursement will
comply with the current provisions of 23 CFR 645 and the ODOT Utilities Manual,
including that:

A.

Arrangements have been or will be made with all utilities where facilities are
affected by the described PROJECT, that the utilities have agreed to make
all necessary removals and/or relocations to clear any construction called
for by the plans of this PROJECT, and that the utilities have agreed to make
the necessary removals and/or relocations after notification by the LPA or
STATE.

The LPA shall, at its own expense, make all removals and/or relocations of
publicly-owned utilities which do not comply with the reimbursement
provisions of the ODOT Utilities Manual. Publicly-owned facilities which do
comply with the reimbursement provisions of the ODOT Utilities Manual will
be removed and/or relocated at project expense, exclusive of betterments.

The removals and/or relocation of all utilities shall be done in such a manner
as not to interfere with the operation of the contractor constructing the
PROJECT and that the utility removals and/or relocations shall be approved
by the STATE and performed in accordance with the provisions of the
ODOT Construction and Materials Specifications.

SECTION VIi: ADDITIONAL PROJECT OBLIGATIONS

The STATE shall initiate the competitive bid letting process and award the
PROJECT in accordance with ODOT's policies and procedures.

The LPA agrees:

A

B
C.
D

To keep said highway open to traffic at all times;

To maintain the PROJECT in accordance with the provisions of the statutes
relating thereto,

To make ample financial and other provisions for such maintenance of the
PROJECT after its completion;

To maintain the right-of-way and keep it free of obstructions in a manner
satisfactory to the STATE and hold said right-of-way inviolate for public
highway purposes;



PID No. 104893

E. To place and maintain all traffic control devices conforming to the Ohio
Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices on the project in compliance with
the provisions of Section 4511.11 of the Ohio Revised Code;

F. To regulate parking in accordance with Section 4511.66 of the Ohio Revised
Code, unless otherwise controlled by local ordinance or resolution.

SECTION VIii: DISPUTES

In the event that any disputes arise between the STATE and LPA concerning interruption
of or performance pursuant to this contract, such disputes shall be resolved solely and
finally by the Director of Transportation.

SECTION IX: NOTICE

Notice under this contract shall be directed as follows:

City of Urbana Ohio Department of Transportation

205 S. Main Street Office of Estimating

Urbana, Ohio 1980 West Broad Street, 1st Floor

43078 Columbus, Ohio 43223

SECTION X: FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS

1. In carrying out this contract, LPA shall not discriminate against any employee or

applicant for employment because of race, religion, color, sex, national origin,
disability, or age. LPA will ensure that applicants are hired and that employees are
treated during employment without regard to their race, religion, color, sex, national
origin (ancestry), disability, genetic information, or age (40 years or older), sexual
orientation, or military status (past, present, future). Such action shall include, but
not be limited to, the following: Employment, Upgrading, Demotion, or Transfer;
Recruitment or Recruitment Advertising; Layoff or Termination; Rates of Pay or
other forms of Compensation; and Selection for Training including Apprenticeship.

2. To the extent necessary under Ohio law, LPA agrees to post in conspicuous
places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices setting
forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause. LPA will, in all solicitations or
advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of LPA, state that all qualified
applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to race,
religion, color, sex, national origin (ancestry), disability, genetic information, age
(40 years or older), sexual orientation, or military status (past, present, future). If
applicable, the LPA shall incorporate the foregoing requirements of this paragraph
in all of its contracts for any of the work prescribed herein (other than subcontracts
for standard commercial supplies or raw materials) and will require all of its
subcontractors for any part of such work to incorporate such requirements in all
subcontracts for such work.



PID No. 104893

LPA agrees to fully comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 USC
Sec. 2000. LPA shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, or national origin
in its programs or activities. The Director of Transportation may monitor the
Contractor's compliance with Title VI.

SECTION XI: GENERAL PROVISIONS

1.

This contract constitutes the entire contract between the parties. All prior
discussions and understandings between the parties are superseded by this
contract.

Neither this contract nor any rights, duties or obligations described herein shall be
assigned by either party hereto without the prior express written consent of the
other party.

. Any change to the provisions of this contract must be made in a written amendment

executed by both parties.

This contract and any claims arising out of this contract shall be governed by the
laws of the State of Ohio. Any provision of this contract prohibited by the law of
Ohio shall be deemed void and of no effect. Any litigation arising out of or relating
in any way to this contract or the performance thereunder shall be brought only in
the courts of Ohio, and the LPA hereby irrevocably consents to such jurisdiction.
To the extent that the STATE is a party to any litigation arising out of or relating in
any way to this contract or the performance thereunder, such an action shall be
brought only in a court of competent jurisdiction in Franklin County, Ohio.

All financial obligations of the State of Ohio, as provided in this contract, are subject
to the provisions of Section 126.07 of the Ohio Revised Code. The financial
obligations of the State of Ohio shall not be valid and enforceable unless funds are
appropriated by the Ohio General Assembly and encumbered by the STATE.
Additionally, it is understood that this financial obligation of the LPA shall not be
valid and enforceable unless funds are appropriated by the LPA's legislative body.

This contract shall be deemed to have been substantially performed only when
fully performed according to its terms and conditions and any modification thereof.

LPA agrees that it is currently in compliance and will continue to adhere to the
requirements of Ohio Ethics law as provided by Section 102.03 and 102.04 of the
Ohio Revised Code.

SECTION XlI: SIGNATURES

Any person executing this contract in a representative capacity hereby warrants that he/she has
been duly authorized by his/her principal to execute this contract on such principal behalf.

Any party hereto may deliver a copy of its counterpart signature page to this Agreement via fax
or e-mail. Each party hereto shall be entitled to rely upon a facsimile signature on any other party
delivered in such a manner as if such signature were an original.



PID No. 104893

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this contract to be duly executed

in duplicate.

OHIO DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION

SEAL
(If Applicable)

LOCAL PUBLIC AGENCY
City of Urbana

Director of Transportation

Approved:
Dave Yost
Attorney General of Ohio

By:

Director of Administration

Stephen H. Johnson
Unit Coordinator, Transportation
Executive Agencies Section

Date



OHIO DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
ACCOUNT RECEIVABLE

Make check payable to: Treasurer of State

Mail to:  Scott Newhouse
Section Manager, Funding & Economics

Ohio Department of Transportation PID No. 104893
Office of Estimating - #4110 Invoice No. 11298

1980 West Broad Street, 1st Floor
Columbus, Ohio 43223

To:  City of Urbana Federal Project No. E170957

205 S. Main Street Champaign County
Urbana, Ohio City of Urbana
43078 U.S. 36/S.R. 29

PLEASE ENCLOSE A COPY OF THIS INVOICE TO IDENTIFY YOUR REMITTANCE

Proposal of Participation Type of Agreement Amount
$123,984.00

Contractamount................... 114,800.00

ODOT Engineeringamount. . ........ 9,184.00

For the improvement of that portion of U.S. 36/S.R. 29, more particularly described as follows:

The project consists of resurfacing U.S. 36 between Locust Street and Berwick
Drive and S.R. 29 between U.S. 36 and Bon Air Drive, including pavement
markings, lying within the City of Urbana.

Total Amount Due ' $123,984.00

Ohio Department of Transportation
E-SIGNED by Joseph Anthon
By: oﬁgggm 2-29 14:40:28 GM
Construction Cost Manager
Office of Estimating




RESOLUTION 2600-21

A RESOLUTION TO DEDICATE THE PUBLIC SANITARY SEWER MAIN THAT
WAS INSTALLED BY PROJECT DEVELOPER, URBANA HOTEL LLC, AS
PART OF THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE NEW COBBLESTONE HOTEL AND
SUITES (PARCEL #K48-25-00-01-20-047-03; 170 STATE ROUTE 55), AND
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

WHEREAS, Urbana Hotel LLC developed a new 54 room hotel building at170
State Route 55 (Parcel #K48-25-00-01-20-047-03) which is currently owned by
Urbana Hotel LLC and is currently operated as a Cobblestone Hotel & Suites;
and

WHEREAS, the Cobblestone Hotel and Suites officially opened for business on
Friday, June 12, 2020; and

WHEREAS, the final certificate of occupancy for this new hotel was formally
issued by Champaign County Building Regulations on Tuesday, September 15,
2020 after final project related items were fully completed; and

WHEREAS, the developer constructed an 8" public sanitary sewer main
extension, including three (3) manholes, thatwas approximately 562 lineal feetin
length along State Route 55 from a new manhole (sanitary manhole #3) that was
set within the right of way east of the hotel driveway with the new sanitary sewer
main running southwest toward and across South High Street to a newly installed
manhole (sanitary manhole #1) with a new sanitary manhole (sanitary manhole
#2) located in between manhole #3and #1; and

WHEREAS, as part of the project's development, this sanitary sewer extension
was properly permitted through Ohio EPA and inspected and tested upon
completion; and

WHEREAS, the City of Urbana and the developer, Urbana Hotel LLC, intended
for this new publicinfrastructure to be installed as part of the project and later
accepted and dedicated for forever public use and operation.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Urbana,
State of Ohio:

SECTION ONE: That the newly installed 8" public sanitary sewer main, including
three (3) manholes, is approximately 562 lineal feetin length and runs along
State Route 55 within the right of way and as shown in the as-builtdrawings that
are attached to this resolution and labeled as “Exhibit A” is hereby accepted and
dedicated for forever public operation and maintenance.




SECTION TWO:

That this resolution shall take effectimmediately upon passage in order to
preserve public health, safety, and welfare as this dedication will provide formally
accept public sanitary sewer and formally place this infrastructure into city
maintenance and operation.

Council President

Passed:

Attest:

This resolution approved by me this day of , 2021

Mayor

Deparimentrequesting: Community Development Personnel: D. Crabill Director of Law

Expenditure? Emergency? Public Hearing? review

Y (N) (YY) N Y (N)

Readings required: (1) 2 3 | ffyes, dates ‘
advertised: W% :

First reading date: Second reading date: | Third/Final reading

January 19, 2021 date:

Anticipated effective date if approved: January 19, 2021




Exhibit A

‘d H _ m OIHO ‘¥Nvaln m m ™~
éum_ m_m ﬁ m S3LINS ANV T3LOH INOLS31880D |, mm § -
E_ .__ m _ “ 804 13L0H M3N _ i “_ | m.“ (3]
i
[
f ¥
j »\m. i
| i
%
H 8 uopess
) 113 & i [ ] X S i 113 3 111
i
sl |
Skl ﬂ .
! T H
.., JJ / =
Ve a f/aEl
YRR AT
il N E |
1 i,
/)if)\ﬂ

— =

—
st x
‘v
L)
="
el
——
=
=]
"
“o

= .
i e
.\ i wm -
J flal ! // -
R |

_wmm...ﬁ_“ :_ | 1

2 A A ; _
T i
i Hf-eer 8

: &Y I
“ Lﬂ / ,_ﬂui

) 131 m -u

Elevation




